REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Event Planning, Management, and Marketing Services for the New York City
Department of Transportation’s 2009 Summer Streets Program
PIN: 84109MBAD374

Date: 1/26/09

This is ADDENDUM #2 for the above referenced Request for Proposals (RFP),
of which you have obtained a copy.

l. CHANGE IN PROPOSAL DUE DATE as follows:

Date: February 2, 2009

Time: 2:00 PM

Location: NYCDOT Contract Management Unit
40 Worth Street — Room 824A
New York, New York 10013

Il REPLACE: “Section || — Summary of the Request for Proposals” (Page 3
of RFP) with the attached “Revision per Question 6" replacement page.

ll. REPLACE: “Section |V — Format and Content of the Proposal” (Pages 8-9
of RFP) with the attached “Revision per Question 32" replacement page.

IV. REPLACE: “Attachment D — Price Proposal Form” with the attached
“Revised Attachment D” replacement page.

V. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS as follows:

Last Year’s Event

1. QUESTION: Can a copy of the post-event report be provided?
ANSWER: The final report from Summer Streets 2008 is attached to this
addendum for your reference.

2. QUESTION: Can a copy of the vendor evaluation be provided?
ANSWER: A vendor evaluation for Summer Streets 2008 is not available.

3. QUESTION: What was the average number of volunteers at each event
last year?
ANSWER: NYCDOT had an average of 100 volunteers per weekend last
year. It is anticipated that NYCDOT will have more volunteers this year.

4. QUESTION: Were the videos on the Web site created by Lead Dog
Marketing (the consultant for Summer Streets 2008) and included as part
of its budget?
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ANSWER: The videos were produced by a variety of partners who did the
work pro bono. The production of videos is not included in this RFP’s
Scope of Work.

2009 Event Details

5.

QUESTION: Does NYCDOT have the specific dates and times or at least
the number days planned for this year? Does NYCDOT want to utilize the
same route as Summer Streets 2008 or can an alternate route be
proposed?

ANSWER: NYCDOT currently does not have a final list of dates or times.
The schedule is likely to be similar to that of the 2008 event (i.e. three (3)
weekend days, 7:00 AM through 1:00 PM each day). Proposers should
provide unit prices based on these assumptions, even though they are not
finalized yet and therefore subject to change. The route also has not yet
been determined but will be established by the City in the near future.

QUESTION: The first paragraph of page 3 of the RFP refers to “an event
that occurs over several consecutive days.” Is this correct?

ANSWER: This was an error and is amended through this addendum;
NYCDOT anticipates that the event will take place over several
consecutive weekends, most likely several Saturdays in a row.

. QUESTION: Page 4 of the RFP states that this event is for people of all

races and ethnicities. Since this is the case, are you expecting outreach
materials to be in multiple languages? If so, which ones?

ANSWER: Ideally, the outreach materials would be prepared in a
minimum of three languages: English, Spanish and Chinese. However,
proposers should be prepared to create materials for other target
audiences, and should propose any other group they believe would be an
appropriate target audience for this event.

. QUESTION: How many meetings with NYCDOT and other City agencies

is it estimated that the event management firm will be asked to attend
throughout the event planning process?

ANSWER: Vendors should expect to meet weekly with the project
manager as soon as the contract begins. Starting in the summer, these
meetings will be replaced by weekly meetings with the intra-NYCDOT and
interagency steering committees. Essentially, one meeting a week will
take place during the spring, and either two meetings or one meeting and
one conference call a week during the summer.

Sponsorship

9.

QUESTION: Is finding and securing sponsors included in this fee? If not,
once the sponsorship plan/package has been created, who will approach
the sponsors, contract them and manage their participation?
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10.

11.

ANSWER: The selected vendor will be responsible for sponsorship
solicitation and management, and for securing sponsorships on behalf of
the City. NYCDOT will create a tier/fee schedule. The selected vendor will
provide advice on the sponsorship package and assist with lead
generation as directed by NYCDOT. Each proposer may propose, in
Attachment E, a commission percentage for sponsorships as a
performance incentive. This proposed commission will not be used as a
basis for proposal evaluation, but will be a part of negotiations with the
selected vendor. Said commission percentage would compensate the
selected vendor for such services.

The selected vendor will be responsible for coordinating its sponsorship
efforts with NYC & Co., which may also be involved in the solicitation of
sponsorship monies for this event. Receipt of sponsorship monies by the
selected vendor will be subject to restrictions by NYC & Co. Such monies
will be used to reimburse the City for the costs of this event, and may be
used as a supplement to the budget included in this RFP. For all monies
received by the vendor through sponsorship opportunities, it is anticipated
that the vendor will place the sponsorship funds in an escrow account to
be managed and monitored by Safe Streets Fund, Inc. The account is to
be used for event expenses as stated above, the selected vendor's
commission fee, and the escrow/monitoring fee earned by Safe Streets
Fund, Inc.

It is the selected vendor's responsibility to negotiate an escrow/monitoring
agreement with Safe Streets Fund, Inc. prior to commencement of
services. Such agreement shall be subject to the approval of NYCDOT. It
is anticipated that the Safe Streets Fund, Inc. escrow/monitoring fee shall
be seven percent of the total sponsorship funds. Upon approval of
NYCDOT, additional expenses beyond those budgeted for this RFP shall
be paid through the escrow fund, subject to the expenses delineated
above.

QUESTION: Can NYCDOT confirm that managing sponsor relationships,
but not outreach to/recruitment of sponsors is included within the Scope of
Work? Further, please clarify the role of the event producer in creating a
sponsorship plan. Is the tier/fee schedule going to be based on pricing
established in 2008, since the organizations that participated at that time
will know what they paid and contributed in kind, or is NYCDOT expecting
the vendor to start from scratch?

ANSWER: Managing sponsors will be the selected vendor’s responsibility.
Once a vendor is selected the pricing tiers will be shared with the vendor,
who may use the sponsorship package created by NYCDOT and NYC &
Co. to sell sponsorships as outlined above.

QUESTION: Who is responsible for filing all necessary paperwork related
to fundraising?

ANSWER: The selected vendor is responsible for the services
delineated in this RFP which relates to fundraising. If this question relates
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to tax issues, the sponsor is responsible for knowing the tax status of any
monies provided and/or raised.

12. QUESTION: Can proposers see last year's sponsorship kit?
ANSWER: No, the kit will not be made available for review.

Marketing and Outreach

13. QUESTION: Does NYCDOT encourage submission of a new brand visual
identity by the proposer if it will be part of an effective marketing plan?
ANSWER: The brand identity is not required as part of your proposal. If a
proposer believes that a new brand visual identity is essential to the
success of the event, it may be included as part of its technical proposal.

14. QUESTION: Who designs and maintains the Web site for Summer
Streets?
ANSWER: The selected proposer will be responsible for developing the
“look and feel” of the site and providing visual elements such as logos,
color schemes, and fonts. The site will be built and maintained by
NYCDOT staff.

15. QUESTION: Does NYCDOT have a preferred vendors list for graphics,
printing, media, etc?
ANSWER: The selected proposer for this RFP will be responsible for
graphics only. Media purchasing, which is outside the scope of this RFP,
will be performed by NYCDOT.

16. QUESTION: What are NYCDOT's expectations for advertising?
ANSWER: Proposers should review Section lll, Scope of Services, to
determine NYCDOT's goals and objectives in developing their program
proposal.

Cost Assumptions

17. QUESTION: Should we assume that costs associated with marketing,
such as printing and advertising, and the costs of production, such as
equipment and insurance, are above and beyond the fee stipulated in the
RFP? If so, what is the anticipated budget for these costs, and will the
expenses be paid directly by NYCDOT or by the vendor?

ANSWER: The costs of production, as well as insurance costs, are
included within the anticipated budget amount. Printing and marketing will
also be the responsibility of the vendor, and the proposal price shall
assume the anticipated budget in the RFP.

18. QUESTION: Is implementation of the programming plan included in the
overall fee?
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19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

ANSWER: Implementation services for the event should be included in
the proposers’ price proposal. Attachment D, the Price Proposal Form,
has been amended to clarify the implementation costs.

QUESTION: Should it be assumed that the cost of marketing and
production expenses is above and beyond the $300,000 allocated for
services? For example, are the costs of signage, decor, t-shirts, printing
and assembling marketing materials, advertising, performer fees, staging
and sound equipment, security, maintenance, insurance, temporary rest
rooms, documentation, etc. included in the $300,0007? If not, is there a set
budget for these expenses?

ANSWER: Proposers should assume that these costs are part of the
anticipated budget. Printing and marketing will also be the responsibility of
the vendor, and the proposal price shall assume the anticipated budget in
the RFP. Advertising and printing costs may be scaled based on the
sponsorship dollars raised.

QUESTION: Is the $300,000 in maximum available funding inclusive of
both event activation budgets and agency fees, or is there a separate
budget for event activation budgets?

ANSWER: There is no separate event activation budget; see Question 18.

QUESTION: Are the costs indicated for the line item “design of
production-ready marketing materials” inclusive of man hours only
dedicated against design and not any printing/production costs involved
for signage?

ANSWER: Yes, this is correct.

QUESTION: It was understood from the briefing session that proposers
will design outreach/marketing materials but that printing is to be executed
by NYCDOT and is not part of the vendor budget. Is this correct? Are
mailing and other distribution costs within or outside the vendor budget?
There is no line item for these costs on the price proposal form.
ANSWER: NYCDOT has very limited capability to print outreach flyers
and brochures and proposers should take into account this very limited
capability when providing a price proposal. All other prlntmg needs should
be part of the vendor’s budget.

QUESTION: In Attachment D, Price Proposal Form, the line items are
labeled as "services," so the indicated costs would not be inclusive of any
production hours involved, as applicable. Please confirm.

ANSWER: That is incorrect. Each service line item is inclusive of the
production hours required to achieve the deliverable. Proposers should
submit price proposals consistent with that approach.

QUESTION: Is the cost of on-site staffing part of the RFP? Since
proposers don't know the number of days, times of the day, or length of
the route, how should proposers express these costs? Should they be
based on last year's parameters?
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25.

ANSWER: Costing for on-site staffing should be included under the
appropriate line item in the Price Proposal Form and should assume three
days. As the basis for proposing a cost, proposers shall use the RFP and
this addendum.

QUESTION: This year, the requested budget seems to incorporate some,
but not all, operation costs as well as fee structures. It is unclear, for
example, if when mentioning “creation of décor and signage” and “design
of production-ready marketing materials” NYCDOT is referring to the
design services and/or including production of materials such as
postcards, t-shirts, etc. It is also difficult to give production quotes without
knowing how many days, etc. the event will be for. Should it be assumed
that the best way to handle this is to approach it as if it were the same
event as last year?

ANSWER: See answer to Question 19 above.

Performance Payments and Incentives

26.

27.

26.

27.

QUESTION: Re: Section lI(D), Anticipated Payment Structure, can
NYCDOT please further explain performance-outcome measures and the
examples used (i.e. unit payments tied to outcomes)?

ANSWER: The main performance-outcome measure the Agency
anticipates using is the one related to sponsorship, as outlined in the
answer to Question 9 above. In addition, performance outcome
measures may be used by any proposer wishing to articulate an approach
that would help NYCDOT achieve its objectives for this event.

QUESTION: Re: Attachment E, Performance Qutcome Measures and
Related Financial Incentives and/or Disincentives, are you expecting
performance-based compensation to be a part of this contract? If so, since
you mentioned that performance-based pricing is more commonly part of
contracts for bridges and road work, do you have a model for a
performance-outcome payment structure for an event-related contract?
ANSWER: There are no examples to give to the proposers, as
performance outcome measures and incentives/disincentives vary from
project to project and are dependant on the individual’s business model
and proposed approach. Proposers should use this addendum as part of
the basis for a performance-based payment structure.

QUESTION: What are the liquidated damages on a daily basis?
ANSWER: The City’s standard consultant contract includes liquidated
damages of $100.00 per consecutive calendar day. However, utilizing
Attachment E, proposers may propose any liquidated damages rate that
would most likely achieve NYCDOT's goals in this matter.

QUESTION: How are the liquidated damages assessed if milestones are
not completed within the negotiated time frame?

ANSWER: Liquidated damages would be assessed if the selected
proposer fails to complete the Scope of Work within the schedule fixed by
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28.

29.

30.

31.

NYCDOT. Liquidated damages would be deducted from monies due to
the vendor.

QUESTION: Re: Section IV(A)(2b), Proposed Approach, should proposers
provide a top-line event plan in response to this section? Although we
understand the points that NYCDOT specifically wants addressed, it is
unclear how the approach would be explained while addressing said
points.

ANSWER: It is up to each proposer to submit a proposal that would be
responsive to the requirements of the RFP. If an individual proposer feels
that a top-line proposed event plan is necessary to meet the requirements
of the RFP and enhance its submission, then the proposer should include
such a plan with its proposal.

QUESTION: The Scope of Work in the RFP does not include preparing a
production budget (logistics, production, etc) at this point in time. But, the
preparation and implementation of such a budget is part of the work once
a contract is awarded. |s that correct?

ANSWER: The preparation of a budget for the event is part of the scope
of the RFP, and shall be considered as part of the event management
plan.

QUESTION: Re: Section IV(A)(3b), Performance-Based Payment
Structure: Can this be explained further?

ANSWER: See the other questions and responses above concerning the
performance-based payment structure.

QUESTION: There are many ways to measure performance. That being
the case, what is NYCDOTs preference?

ANSWER: NYCDOT cannot express a preference to proposers as to the
performance-based payment structure, other than its request for a
commission fee, as specified above. Other than the information required
by Attachment E (see above), proposers should provide information that
would likely achieve NYCDOT's objectives and goals for this event.

Administrative

32.

33.

QUESTION: Under Section IV(B), Proposal Package Contents (Checklist),
the checklist does not indicate where Attachment C, Affirmation Form,
should be placed in the package. Please advise.

ANSWER: Attachment C should be included in the Program Proposal.
Please see attached revision to the RFP in this addendum.

QUESTION: On Page 3 of the RFP, the term of the contract is stated as
180 consecutive calendar days, but the budget is “$300,000.00 over one
year.” How do these reconcile?

ANSWER: The $300,000.00 is for the 180 days of the contract.
“$300,000.00 over one year” means that there is $300,000.00 available for
this year's event.
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34.

35.

QUESTION: Due to the size of my firm, | do not have an audit report nor
does my financial statement need to be certified. |s there something that
should be provided instead?

ANSWER: Please provide a written explanation as to why you do not
have an audited financial statement and as much information as possible
about your organization’s financial health, including but not limited to
business tax returns for the last year available.

QUESTION: What is the minimum amount of professional and general
liability insurance required by each. vendor?

ANSWER: The general insurance requirements for the resultant contract
will be as stated below:

Required Insurance Coverage: Before performing any work on the

Contract, the Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Contract, insurance against any claims for injuries to persons or damage
to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the work in this Contract by the Contractor, its agents, representatives,
employees or subcontractors. The Contractor shall procure the required
insurance from companies licensed and authorized by the New York State
Department of Insurance to do business in New York State and with a
Best's rating of A-7 or better.

L.

Commercial General Liability. Before performing any work
on the Contract, the Contractor shall procure
Comprehensive General Liability Insurance in the
Contractor's name and naming the City of New York and the
Department of Transportation as additional insured
thereunder and endorsed to cover the liability assumed by
the Contractor under the indemnity provisions of this
Contract. This insurance policy shall be maintained during
the term of this Contract and shall protect the City of New
York, the Contractor and/or its subcontractors performing
work under this Contract from claims for property damage
and/or bodily injury, including death, which may arise from
operations under this Contract, whether such operations are
performed by the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by the Contractor. The coverage provided shall
not be less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. The coverage
provided must be “occurrence” based; “claims-made”
coverage will not be accepted.

Workers' Compensation Insurance. Before performing any
work on this Contract, the Contractor and each
Subcontractor shall provide Workers’ Compensation
Insurance in accordance with the Laws of the State of New
York, and the United States Longshoremen’s and Harbor
Workers' Act where applicable, on behalf of all employees
providing services under this Contract.
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36.

37.

38.

39.

3. Employers'’ Liability Insurance. Before performing any work
on this Contract, the Contractor shall procure Employers’
Liability Insurance, in the amount of at least $1,000,000 per
accident, providing compensation for bodily injury by
accident or disease sustained by any employee of the
insured arising out of and in the course of his/her
employment by the Contractor.

4. Automobile Liability. Before performing any work on this
Contract, the Contractor shall procure commercial auto
liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and
borrowed vehicles to be used in connection with this
Contract. The City of New York and the Department shall be
named as additional insureds. Coverage shall be in an
amount of at least $1,000,000.00.

5. Unemployment Insurance. Before performing any work on
this Contract, Unemployment Insurance coverage shall be
obtained and provided by the Contractor for its employees.

QUESTION: Regarding the vendor’s delivery of the completed RFP, is it
acceptable to be delivered by a messenger service? The document
indicates e-mailed or faxed proposals will not be accepted by the Agency.
ANSWER: Proposers may messenger their proposals. Messengered
proposals must be hand delivered to the bid window at 40 Worth Street,
Room 824A, by the deadline. It is each proposer's sole responsibility to
ensure that the proposals are submitted by the due date-and time.

QUESTION: Are proposers allowed to include any relevant pictures (of
past events described in the narrative) in the proposal as they deem
necessary?

ANSWER: Pictures are permitted in the narrative. In addition, proposers
may create five (5) copies of a CD with JPG files or a PDF file containing
all images for the evaluation committee to review. The CD should be
submitted with the Program Proposal.

QUESTION: Are proposers allowed to include a disc with video footage
from previous events as part of their submissions?

ANSWER: Proposers should not include such material as it will not be
evaluated as part of their technical proposal.

QUESTION: If a proposer cannot provide all required services in-house,
would it be acceptable for the proposer to hire subconsultants that it would
direct and manage?

ANSWER: Yes. Subcontractors may be proposed as part of a team, and
shall be clearly marked as such.
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40.

41.

42,

43.

44,

45.

QUESTION: Will subcontractors be hired to work on any part of this
project, particularly public information, employee information, marketing,
and advertising?

ANSWER: See the answer to Question 39, above. A proposer may hire
subcontractors that it will direct and manage. The proposer will be the one
held responsible for getting the work done. Subcontractors are subject to
the approval of NYCDOT.

QUESTION: Does NYCDOT have a desired font style and size?
ANSWER: Please follow the requirements of Section IV, Format and
Content of the Proposal, of the RFP.

QUESTION: How long does it take NYCDOT to pay on expenses?
ANSWER: Payment for services is dependent on the completion of
deliverables as delineated in the contract and the submission of proper
invoices. Expenses must be paid in accordance with the Prompt Payment
Guidelines of the New York City Procurement Policy Board (PPB) Rules.

QUESTION: As payment is connected to performance, can we see last
year's production timeline?
ANSWER: A production timeline is not available.

QUESTION: Does NYCDOT have definitive target goals? If so, what are
they?

ANSWER: NYCDOT will be measuring internal target goals through
earned media, attendance, attendee enjoyment, and public satisfaction
(as measured through calls to 311, letters to NYCDOT and elected
officials, and e-mail messages through the Summer Streets Web site).

QUESTION: Are there any Minority- and Women-Owned Business
Enterprise (M/WBE) goals related to this project?
ANSWER: No, as this procurement is not subject to Local Law 129.

Prospective proposers are advised that no additional questions concerning
this RFP will be considered.

This ADDENDUM is hereby made a part of the original RFP document.

NO FURTHER TEXT ON THIS PAGE
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Siispinni=iei (=515l Event Overview and Recap

In August of 2008 New York City began what the Mayor termed an “experiment,” creating a 6.9
mile “ribbon of recreation” down the center of Manhattan. For three consecutive Saturdays over
50,000 New Yorkers and visitors flocked to Park Avenue to enjoy our city’s streets in a whole
new way. At Summer Streets they biked, they jogged, they roller bladed, they strolled with baby
carriages and dogs. They appreciated the historic architecture; especially as the route lead them
up through the Met Life building. And they enjoyed one of the rarest things in Manhattan, some
peace and quiet.

Summer Streets was originally conceived

a 6_9 mlle "ribbon of of as a way to inspire New Yorkers to think

about their streets in a new way. As the New

Iecreation" down the York City Department of Transportation works
to create a more hospitable environment for
center of Manhattan.

sustainable modes the Agency has been
reclaiming and reprogramming street space
previously dedicated to the movement of motor vehicles. The Agency has an aggressive program
to create over 200 new miles of bicycle lanes between 2006-2009 and 15 miles of protected
bike lanes by 2009 and an additional 30 after that. DOT is creating Select Bus Service corridors,
some of which will require reclaiming street space from non-bus traffic. And DOT’s New York
Plaza Program is morphing under used streets into vibrant, social public spaces. Some of these
changes can happen quickly but many will require long-term capital projects. Summer Streets,
and other temporary interventions can help lay the groundwork and create public support for
these bigger transformations.

Summer Streets was modeled on successful events around the globe including most famously
ciclovia in Bogota, Colombia. Key to the vision for the event was to create a route of sufficient length
to attract cyclists as well as joggers and walkers; to create an event that happened for several
consecutive days (Bogota’s is every single Sunday plus every national holiday); to promote local
businesses and keep the streets clear of vendors to distinguish it from a street fair; to keep the
event free and open to the public without need for pre-registration; and to create some ancillary

Designed to attract a
diverse array of people
to use streets as places
for healthy activity

and social interaction.
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summer Streets by the Numbers

were open to the public (and
closed to motorized traffic) from
the Brooklyn Bridge to Central
Park via:

- Centre St.

- Lafayette St.

= 4th Ave

- Park Ave to 72nd St.

< 72nd St. into Central Park

Low-traffic connections to the
West Side Greenway via 90th/91st
Streets in the north and Duane/
Warren in the south, allowing
participants to create a loop

if desired. Way-finding signs
were hung along these

connector streets.

along the route hosted stage
performances & activities
including arts, fithess

and cultural programs

and offered free bike rentals.

Over 350 blog posts
about the event.

Transportation partnered with the
Department of Health and Mental
Hygiene to conduct a screenline
count and intercept surveys at
three locations at the second
Summer Streets. The results
were as follows:

Over of respondents
indicated they would attend
Summer Streets 2 or more times
per month if it was held every
week during the summer.

of walkers said that traffic
prevents them from walking more,
and 7 in 10 cyclists said that traffic
limits their biking.
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summer Streets DOT/DHMH On-Street Survey Results

The respondent was...

Roller

Blading
4%,  Bicycling
30%

Walking/
Running
66%

How old are you?

18-24
6%

25-44
56%

How did you get here today?

Car/Taxi
10%

Bus/

Subway/
Train

20%
Walk
18%

Which one or more of the following

would you say is your race?

Hispanic
Black 10%
6%

Asian
15%

Gender?

Wearing helmet?

No helmet
28%

Wearing a
Helmet
72%






Interagency Coordination

The Mayor’s Office of Citywide Event Manage-
ment and Coordination (CEMC) was crucial
to the success of the event. CEMC and the
Street Activity Permit Office (SAPO) helped
bring together the various City agencies
needed for this event including NYPD, DSNY,
SBS and DEP. NYPD’s role was essential in
putting in place and enforcing the necessary
street closures and traffic diversions. DOT
and NYPD posted no-parking signs along the
route in the week leading up to the events
and NYPD towed cars that were still parked
in the no-parking areas in the wee morning
hours before the event. FDNY provided EMTs
and monitored emergency response times.
NYC Transit helped re-route buses and co-
ordinate with Access-A-Ride. State DEC
monitored air quality. NYC&Co. assisted with
sponsorship sales and marketing. Our inter-
agency working group met bi-weekly lead-
ing up to the event and had meetings each
week following each of the events. Through
regular communication we were able to
refine the event over time and even between
events to ensure continued progress
towards perfection.

TR

ETTEILI

Close coordination between City agencies was essential.

Outreach, Marketing &
Promotion and Press

NYCDOT conducted outreach to elected of-
ficials, business improvement districts and
community boards. The Agency also worked
with Lead Dog Marketing to create and dis-
tribute over 2,000 flyers door-to-door to local
businesses and apartment buildings explain-
ing the program and which streets would be
open and closed during what times so that
people could plan around the event. NYC-
DOT also provided information to 311 and
established a dedicated hotline and e-mail
address for community concerns. NYCDOT
also created a day-of-event hotline which
was staffed on the route to troubleshoot any
unexpected problems residents or business-
es experienced.
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Summer Streets was promoted in print, TV, radio, through email and online using a combination of paid, free and bartered advertising

Lead Dog Marketing created a local market-
ing plan from June through August. They
facilitated local media partnerships to maxi-
mize awareness and drive attendance. They
focused on radio, print, television, PSAs and
OOH ads. NYCDOT and our other partners
build a strong online presence to promote the
event. Lead Dog developed strategic partner-
ship’s to maximize the city’s existing assets
and gain exposure

News, amNY and Metro) and several major
NYC television stations. The Mayor held a
second press conference to kick off Sum-
mer Streets on the Thursday before the first
event. The press conference was attended
by NYCDOT Commissioner Sadik-Khan,
and world-famous rap star and entrepreneur
Jay-Z. The Mayor’s office and Lead Dog also
helped round up programming and communi-
ty partners to give

to targeted con-

) the press a taste

sumers. They fo-
cused on retail,
local clubs and or-
ganizations, com-
munity groups,
local web sites
and event’s cal-

9% on the radio

4% from e-mails

4% from a poster or flyer
1 6% unknown/other

How did people find out about
Summer Streets?

30% newspaper
21% internet
8% on TV

13% from friends

of the sights and
sounds to expect
along the route.
The press confer-
ence was held on
the route at Fo-
ley Square. Again

endars. Lead Dog {

it was covered

J

created a grass-

roots marketing plan to reach people in the
community. They used brand ambassador
street teams, targeted distribution of materi-
als at retail (i.e. posters and counter cards)
and direct outreach via databases of partner
organizations.

NYCDOT’s press office with the Mayor’s
press office and assisted by Lead Dog creat-
ed two press conferences. NYCDOT and the
Mayor’s office helped recruit world renowned
cyclist Lance Armstrong and musician and
artist David Bryne to a press conference to
announce the creation of the Summer Streets
program on June 16th about two months in
advance of the first event. The press confer-
ence was held on the route at Astor Place.
The press conference was covered by virtu-
ally ever major newspaper (Times, Post, Daily

Stars including Mayor Bloomberg, Lance Armstrong and Jay-Z helped

create quite a buzz about the event at two press conferences
leading up to Summer Streets.

by nearly every
major paper and television station in New
ork City.

When asked about how they heard about
Summer Streets, 30% of respondents said in
the newspaper, 21% on the internet, 18% on
TV, 13% from friends, 9% on the radio, 4%
from e-mails, 4% from a poster or flyer and
16% from other sources.






The Uptown “Arts & Culture”
rest stop at 345 Park Avenue
was donated by the Rudin
Management Company.
Participants there could

take ballroom dance classes,
see a demonstration by the
world-famous Alvin Alley
Dance Company or just hang
out on the plaza steps

and watch the crowds go by.

Programming

Cities like Bogota found that providing programming along the route of their event was crucial
for enticing people to come to the event. Once participants were there they would often take ad-
vantage of the closed streets to walk and bike, even if they did not identify as cyclists or fitness
walkers or runners. In Bogota they created themed program areas (e.g. a temporary skate park or
a dance and aerobic stage) in order to create the desire to move between one area and another.
To this end we created three “rest stops” and scheduled activities and clusters resources around
them such as first aid, water and free bicycle rentals. Each rest stop had its own programming
theme, onsite events/activities and sponsor specific programming.

|:i\ i

The Midtown “Health & Fitness” rest stop at 23rd Street The Downtown “Underground” rest stop near Spring Street
featured a wide range of aerobics, dance and yoga classes featured a wide variety of musicians and some martial arts
all day long courtesy of Crunch Gyms. Hundreds of demonstrations as well. Nearby, Bike New York offered free
participants turned out to sweat in the streets. classes teaching adults and children how to ride bikes.
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Rest Stop Elements

+ Free bike share (over 100 bikes / week)
Free bike repair (three stations)

- DOT provided free helmets and
helmet fitting (1500 / week)

First aid
* Programming on-stage including
aerobics classes, dance classes,

musical performances and martial
arts demonstrations

Programming in the street spaces
including kids play areas with chalk
and toys, street games like hackey
sack and hop scotch and learn-to-ride
a bike classes

+ Sponsor booths

City partners booths (e.g. Parks and
Department of Environmental Protection)

Free valet bike parking (Uptown)
Water Fountains and dog bowls
+ Free skateshare (Uptown & Midtown)
Free skate repair (Uptown & Midtown)

Clockwise from left: Free bike rentals were one of the most
popular features of Summer Streets, allowing people to “test
drive” the experience of bicycling on New York streets. DOT staff
fit and distributed over 1500 helmets, we observed many people
wearing the helmets as they returned to Summer Streets the
second and third weeks. Kid’s play areas were a hit with parents
who wanted to check out Summer Streets but needed a place to
take a break with little ones.






e
GRS W,

Sponsorship

Lead Dog worked with NYC&Co. to create a sponsorship plan and attract sponsors. There was an
extremely short timeline for recruiting sponsors for 2008. Lead Dog leveraged media partnerships
to ensure the event was well-marketed, even given a small marketing budget and helped attract
other sponsors with the value this space offered. Sponsors for 2008 included Crunch Gyms, Café
de Colombia, RCN and Bicycle Habitat. Media partners included Metro, CBS/HDTV-2, WABC,
VMe and RCN.

Funding and Budget

Since 2008 was considered a pilot year for Summer Streets DOT worked with the Mayor’s Fund
to Advance NYC to raise private donations to cover many of the direct costs of this event. These
start-up funds enabled DOT to contract out for event management and marketing services which
the Agency did not have in-house. Lead Dog Marketing, working in partnership with NYC&Co.,
the City’s official marketing and tourism entity, helped to secure $55,000 in cash sponsorships as
well as an estimated $220,000 in free or bartered media exposure. Given the success of the 2008
program DOT will work to incorporate more of the event management expenses into the Agency’s
budget, and rely on a combination of public and private funds for 2009.

Traffic Impacts

Traffic impacts of Summer Streets were minimal, in part because the event was held early on
summer Saturday mornings. Approximately 1/3 of vehicles normally on Park Avenue disappeared,
possibly taking mass transit instead or deferring their trips till later in the day or possibly just travel-
ing on routes outside of our study area. Approximately 1/3 of vehicles used 5th Avenue. Another
1/3 of vehicles split evenly between streets to the east (FDR Drive, 1st, 2nd and 3rd Avenues).
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Operations and Volunteers

DOT and NYPD Traffic worked together to
design and implement traffic diversions as
necessary for this event. NYPD and DOT post-
ed no-parking signs along the route. NYPD
towed cars as needed beginning at 11 pm
the night before each event. DOT rack trucks
deposited cones to assist with separation of
the southern portion of the route (which is a
one-way street) into north and south. NYPD
closed the route to motor vehicles beginning
at 6 am, with the final closures going into place
on the Brooklyn Bridge exits just before 7 am.
NYPD also re-opened the roadways at 1 pm
to traffic. Full re-opening took approximately
a half hour, which was shorter than originally
expected.

NYPD provided officers that controlled all
open intersections. TEAs controlled closed
cross streets. NYPD was assisted by DOT
staff and volunteers. Volunteers were not
allowed to help with traffic control, rather they
focused on ensuring that cyclists and pedes-

trians obeyed directions from TEAs, police
officers and signage. Volunteers also assisted
in notifying participants that the streets would
be re-opened to motor vehicles at 1 pm.

One interesting note, since vendors
were at a minimum for this event and there
was very little product sampling, the event
generated very little trash. The interagen-
cy coordinating group had planned to have
DSNY do a full hand-sweep as they do after
parades and street fairs. This is time- and
labor-intensive and pushes back re-open-
ing time for streets. Since Summer Streets
produced hardly any trash or litter, the hand
sweep was not necessary and streets were
re-opened promptly at the end of the event.

Volunteers also assisted with set-up, break
down, at rest stops and conducted a bike
patrol in the streets.

- —_....‘P'K‘gqod.c anicatro

#
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w?ing smoothly together over the length of the route.
L e






Key Recommendations

- Repeat Summer Streets next year and
seek to expand the program to at least
one other borough

+ Event timing
— Consecutive weekends were
essential for keeping momentum,
sponsorship, and advertising
* Increase the number of event days
over the summer
— Starting in June and ending in August
+ Consider extending the hours of the
event day, especially in other boroughs
- Start volunteer and sponsorship
recruitment as early as possible

- Provide more volunteers and designated
“pedestrian crosswalks” at crowded
locations, especially near Union Square
and downtown

* Look into having designated “bike”
and “pedestrian” lanes

+ Come up with a better system to allow
access for parking garage customers

- Mitigate impacts to businesses selling

heavier goods (furniture, luggage, etc.)

Encourage hotels to use pedicabs to
ferry guests if needed

Continue to develop a more robust
partnership with hotels and other
businesses along the route

— Promote to tourists

— Create a “bike and brunch” package
for residents which would offer
discounts at local establishments
along and adjacent to route

Increase sponsorship levels by
creating sponsor zones

Market more heavily in the other
boroughs and in the ethnic media
Have more “green” programming
and activities

Consider adding portolets along
the route in key, strategic areas

* One of the scores of positive comments received after the event.
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summer Streets

WwWw.nyc.gov/summerstreets
Photos, videos, route maps and more.
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B.

C.

SECTION Il - SUMMARY OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Purpose of RFP

The Agency is seeking an appropriately qualified vendor to plan, manage,
and market its Summer Streets 2009 Program, which promotes
sustainable transportation and healthy physical activity. Summer Streets
was originally conceived as a way to inspire New Yorkers to think about
their streets in a new way. Key to the vision for the event is to provide a
route free from motor vehicles and of sufficient length to attract bicyclists
as well as joggers, rollerbladers, and walkers; to create an event that
occurs over several consecutive weekends; to promote local businesses;
to keep the event free and open to the public; and to create ancillary
programming to attract participants who might not self-identify as cyclists
or joggers or even as people particularly interested in exercise.

Anticipated Contract Term

It is anticipated that the term of the contract awarded from this RFP will be
180 Consecutive Calendar Days from the date of written Notice to
Proceed.

Maximum Available Funding

The maximum available funding for the contract awarded from this RFP
will be $300,000 over one year. Under no circumstances shall the
successful vendor construe the maximum contract amount as an
expectation of future business. The proposer’s price proposal is
understood to be for the purposes of price comparison only. In addition,
the Agency reserves the right to increase or decrease available funding at
any time.

Anticipated Payment Structure

It is anticipated that the payment structure of the contracts awarded from
this RFP will be based on a combination of line-item budget
reimbursement and performance-outcome measures (i.e. specific
performance payment cutcome measures and related financial incentives
and/or disincentives, unit payments tied to outcomes, milestone payments
tied to outcomes, and/or liquidated damages tied to outcomes). However,
the Agency will consider proposals to structure payments in a different
manner and reserves the right to select any payment structure that is in
the City’s best interest.

Revision per Question 6 of Addendum #2 to
PIN 84109MBAD374
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SECTION IV - FORMAT AND CONTENT OF THE PROPOSAL

B. Proposal Package Contents (Checklist

The Proposal Package should contain the following materials. Proposers
should utilize this section as a checklist to assure completeness prior to
submitting their proposal to the Agency.

1. A sealed inner envelope labeled “Program Proposal,” containing one
original set and five (5) duplicate sets of the documents listed below in
the following order:

e Proposal Cover Letter Form (Attachment A)

e Program Proposal
oo Narrative (_)
oo References for the Proposer and, if applicable, each Sub-
Contractor (__)
oo Resumes and/or Description of Qualifications for Key Staff
Positions (__)
oo Organizational Chart (__)
oo Audit Report or Certified Financial Statement or a statement as
to why no report or  statement is available (__)

¢ Acknowledgment of Addenda Form (Attachment B)

o Affirmation Form (Attachment C)

2. A separate sealed inner envelope labeled “Price Proposal” containing
one original set and five (5) duplicate sets of the Price Proposal.
¢ Price Proposal Form (Attachment D) (_ )
¢ Proposed Performance-Based Payment Structure (Attachment E)

)

3. All proposals must contain a third sealed inner envelope labeled “Doing
Business Data Form” containing an original, completed Doing
Business Data Form (see Attachment F).

4. A sealed outer envelope, enclosing the three sealed inner envelopes.

The sealed outer envelope should have two labels containing:

e The proposer's name and address, the Title and PIN of this RFP
and the name and telephone number of the Proposer’'s Contact
Person.

e The location for submittal of proposals:

NYCDOT Contract Management Unit
40 Worth Street — Room 824A, New York, New York 10013

Revision per Question 32 of Addendum #2 to
PIN 84109MBAD374
Page 1 of 1





ATTACHMENT D

PRICE PROPOSAL FORM
RFP TITLE: Event Planning, Management, and Marketing Services for the
New York City Department of Transportation’s 2009 Summer Streets
Program

PIN: 84109MBAD374

(Proposed prices are for the entire program, except where otherwise noted)*

Service Cost
Development of event branding and marketing $
campaign
Creation of sponsorship plan including sponsorship $
package (deck) with tiers and fees and list of potential
SpoONsors
Creation of marketing/public relations plan that: 3

¢ reaches NYCDOT's target audiences, with an
emphasis on media partnerships, leveraging the
City's existing assets, local partnerships, Out-of-
Home (OOH) ads and grassroots promotions
¢ includes an action plan that informing the
community of the upcoming event and educating
the community on the importance of the initiative
for New Yorkers
Implementation of marketing/public relations plan
Creation (i.e. design and production) of décor and
signage identifying on-site elements that will draw
crowds, engage people onsite, and bring NYCDOT's
message to life

&P

Design of production-ready marketing material,
including:
¢ Promotional collateral materials (e.g. postcards,
stickers, spokecards, in-store displays, posters,
outreach flyers)
¢ Magazine and newspaper ads
¢ Signage/banners and printed materials for rest
stops and reunion stations $
¢ Route signage
e Staff/volunteer t-shirts

Creation of a programming plan $

Revised Attachment D per Addendum #2 to
PIN: 84109MBAD374
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Comprehensive event management plan (including
budget, staffing and production schedules)

Recruitment and coordination of programming partners

Recruitment, coordination, and management of
volunteers

&R R|eH

On-site event management (per event)*

Proposed budget for rental equipment, possibly
including, but not limited to: sound systems for
performers, tables, tents, chairs, etc. (per event)*

Proposed budget for other materials or equipment
necessary to make this event successful and
enjoyable, including but not limited to: first aid kits,
sidewalk chalk, games, and other activities for
participants (per event)*

Emergency Medical Services to be on-site during the
event (per event)*

Submittal of post event reports (one brief after first
event, one comprehensive recap after final event)

on|eh

TOTAL

*Notes:

1. NYCDOT will calculate and compensate the selected proposer for the
total implementation and management costs for Summer Streets 2009
based on the proposed "per event" costs above, once the total
number of events has been ascertained.

2. The Summer Streets 2009 program will consist of no fewer than
three (3) and no more than seven (7) separate one-day events.

3. Itis the Agency’s assumption that approximately one-half of the
successful proposer’s efforts will be for planning, graphic design,
marketing, and event coordination. The other half will be for
procurement of event-related rentals, materials, etc.

4. The Agency will not pay trucking, shipping or warehousing fees. This
should be included in your overhead costs.

Revised Attachment D per Addendum #2 to
PIN: 84109MBAD374
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